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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT — GROUP POSITION
For the year ended 31 March 2020

The directors present the strategic report, the directors’ report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2020.

Overview

The Growth Company is the holding company for the Growth Company group of companies (the ‘group’ or GC}. It sets
strategy, oversees operations and provides a range of corporate services to its subsidiaries. It contracts with the
Education and Skills Funding Agency [ESFA), Department of Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy {BEIS), Department
of Work & Pensions (DWP) and athers to deliver, both through its subsidiaries and other providers:

Learning, including Apprenticeships and other workforce development initiatives;

Further Education, including provision for unemployed adults;

The National Citizen Service programme on behalf of the National Citizen Trust for the North West;
The National Careers Service acrass Greater Manchester, the North West and Staffordshire;

The Work Programme and other employment initiatives;

The International Trade contract on behalf of Department of International Trade ('DIT'};

A programme of business suppoart activities including a loans programme through its own Community
Development Finance Initiative {‘CDfI'}, European funded programmes and the Business Growth Hub.
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The group is structured to deliver programmes in the following areas:
» Business;
= Employment;

Skitis;

Organisational Improvement; and

Internationalisation and Marketing.

Business activities and strategic achievements
During 2019/20, GC set out its vision and ambition for the next 3 years through the development of a new strategy.

GC's Visian is for a society where economic growth and prosperity is inclusive, sustainable and leaves no petson or
community behind. The future we will help to create will be founded on the principle of Good Growth {a broader
measure of economic well-being including jobs, income, health, skills, work-life balance and the environment) with
thriving businesses, creating well-paid jobs for talented and empowered individuals across our diverse communities.

The Ambition far GC is to be the UK's most successful provider of development services to people, places and
businesses. We will achieve these aims through operating under 5 themes:

1. To be a market leader — GC aims to be the best-performing provider of business, people and place-based
support services.

2. Increasing reach — GC collaborates with government, businesses and communities across the UK, in all major
cities and target international markets.

3. Attracting and retaining the brightest and the best ~ GC will be recognised and accredited as a leading
employer, attracting and retaining highly skilled staff.

4. Financial sustainability — within 5 years, GC will be generating, at least, a 5% net surplus from all non-grant
funded activity and will have increased its turnover year on year throughout the 5 year period.

5. Social value and environmental sustainahility — GC will be an accredited social enterprise and will be widely
recognised as a leading provider of social value impact in the way it delivers each service.

The strategy sets out a series of strategic priorities and defined measures of success. It is then delivered through the
production of an annual business plan, approved by the GC Board and managed and monitored through quarterly
performance reports aligned to the strategic priorities.
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Covid-19 — Impact on the business and the three year strategy

Whilst the strategy was developed and approved at the end of 2019 and laid the foundation for growth over the next
three years, clearly, it has been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic. Whilst the overarching strategy remains unaffected
by Covid-19, the way in which it will be delivered is likely to be affected in a number of ways. The delivery madels around
face-to-face engagement with individuals, learners, and businesses, and through events, quickly changed at the
beginning of the pandemic with many of these models in place alongside more traditional methods of engagement. In
the short term, the main financial impact has been around our mare profitable payments-by-resuits contracts switching
to cost recovery models, which were necessary to sustain delivery, and a reduction in commercial income. This has been
particularly in sectors where we have commercially operated, for example, hospitality, leisure and tourism. The
company has worked closely with commissioners and amending payments-by-results contracts to cost recovery models
has significantly helped cashflow and allowed some contribution to cverheads. We have, however, had to implementa
number of short-term cost reduction measures to help mitigate an expected 13% reduction from budgeted turnover in
2020/21, equating to a reduction of £17 million. These necessary decisions taken by the Board have included the
cessation of all non-essential recruitment, salary reductions across the Group, furloughing up to a quarter of all staff
and a right-sizing exercise undertaken in the Summer of 2020.

In the longer term, we do not believe that our ability to achieve our strategic priorities will be materially impacted as
opportunities are likely to arise due to the economic landscape emerging from Covid-19, particularly within our Skills
and Employment programmes. Qur grant-funded areas, particularly across our business support programmes have not
been impacted by Covid-19 and, within our business finance division (The Enterprise Fund), we have been able to
provide financial suppart to businesses through the government hacked CBILS and BBLS schemes. The greatest degree
of uncertainty exists within our commercial activity and, whilst we believe that we will return to pre-Covid-19 levels,
this is likely not to be before the end of 2021/22.

EU exit - Impact on the business and three year strategy

We believe that Brexit will have limited impact on our ability to deliver our strategic objectives on the basis that most
of our activity is undertaken within the UK and is not susceptible to European funding. However, our Business Growth
Hub {GMBS) is in receipt of significant levels of European Regional Development Funds (ERDF) and current contracts run
through to October 2021 with outline approval given to extensions to these projects to June 2023. We are engaged with
Local Enterprise Partnerships and key government departments to ensure that we are well placed to draw down any
funding streams that may replace ERDF in the future.

Notable strategic priority achievements in 2019/20 have included:

. Cantributing £435m of additional GVA to the economy;

. Delivering over 26,000 business assists, creating 10,663 jobs, and placing 7,920 people inte work; '

* Securing £35.2m economic impact from conferences;

. Winning 43 Foreign Direct Investment projects for GM;

. Supporting £1.2bn of export sales across the whole NW Region;

. Winning our first DWP national Prime Contract with Intensive Personalised Employment Support {NW) and our
first natianal business support programme — Be the Business Mentaring for Growth

. Achieving the largest, single contract win in our 30-year history with the National Citizen Service North West
contract (£88m) and securing justice-sector market entry with our first Mol contract — Prison IAG;

. Launched the GM-commissioned Levy Matchmaking Service to facilitate funding transfers to create more
apprenticeship opportunities acrass the city region;

. successfully introduced the GM Global Scale-Up Programme to support participating businesses to access
international markets;

. Development and launch, with GMCA, of the GM Good Employment Charter with over 1,200 employers engaged;

. Led delivery of a support package in the aftermath of the Thomas Cook collapse including website and contact
centre in place within 24 hours of the announcement and co-ordination of two major employment support fairs
reaching 1,500 farmer employees;

. Launched the Manchester—New York city-to-city media partnership

. Secured 13 award naminations including Best Crisis Communications {for our work relating to the collapse of
Thomas Cook), and winning 4, including recognition at North West Young Professionals of the Year and the
Recruiter Investing in Talent Awards

. Achieved Investors in Peaple (IIP) Silver accreditation;

. Achieved Disability Confident tevel 3;
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Notable strategic priority achievements in 2019/20 have included: {continued)

. Secured re-accreditation of 1509001 and 15027001, plus 15027001 accreditation for The Manufacturing Institute;

. Achieved the Matrix Standard and secured Meriin Standard ‘Good’ accreditation for supply chain management
across GC Employment, Education and Skills; and

. Secured Cyber Essentials and Cyber Essentials Plus re-certification.

Section 172(1) Statement

This section serves as aur section 172{1} statement and should be read in conjunction with the Strategic Report on
pages 3 to 16. Section 172{1){a) to (f) of the Companies Act 2006 sets out how directors have had regard to the interests
of the company's employees and stakeholders, including the impact of its activities on the community, the environment
and the company’s reputation, when making decisions. Acting in good faith and fairly between its stakeholder groups,
the directors consider what is most likely to promote the success of the company far its stakehalders in the long term,

The stakeholder groups engaged by the company, and reported through to the Board, are its customers & clients,
commissioners, our people, suppliers, lenders and partners. The company’s Senior Management Team (SMT) acts as an
executive team on behalf of the Board to engage with its stakeholders and has internal mechanisms in place such as the
Audit Committee, the three advisory boards across all major aspects of company activity (workforce development,
internationalisation and marketing and business support} and a contract review group to ensure that any conflicts of
interest are managed.

The Covid-19 outbreak has, obviously, been a matter of great concern to the directors and an overview of the various
actions and steps they tock as a result is contained eisewhere within the Strategic Report. As the Covid-19 pandemic
only started to have an impact on activity at the end of 2019/20, this statement, therefore, almost exclusively
concentrates on non-Covid-19 related events and matters.

Set out in relation to each of the company’s principal stakeholder groups are:

s Why the directors believed it was important to engage with thal group;

»  The main methods the directors used to engage and so understand the issues to which they had to have regard
{including those used by management);

* Information on the effect of that regard on the company’s decisions and strategies during the period.

Customers/clients

Approximately 10% of the company’s revenue is generated through commercial activity across a range of services from
accreditation consultancy through to recruitment agency services. Lower revenue across this activity is likely to lead to
a lower surplus and the directors recognise that customers do have a choice in the provision of these services and that
customer service is critical in retaining existing and generating new business. This principle also applies where revenue
is non-fee generating, for example, through business support, work programme and learner activity. Again, client
progression, such as through apprenticeship programmes or business support activity is critical to the success of the
company’s key purpose of Enabling Growth Improving Lives Creating Jobs.

Using a variety of platfarms, from sacial media, thraugh ta on-line engagement and events but, primarily (pre-Covid-
19), face-to-face engagement, during 2019/20, the company advised nearly 600 clients on starting a business and issued
almost 6,000 start-up loans to new businesses. The company engaged with over 200 employers across Greater
Manchester under the Greater Manchester Good Employment Charter and the company, in March, launched
EmployGM, a support hub to businesses in response ta Covid-19, offering a single place of suppart for both businesses
and individuals allowing access to recruitment services, business support, National Careers Service and Job Centre Plus.
The company also, through its business support engagement, operates guarterly customer feedback surveys. This has
resulted in the Growth Company being able to improve its service design which is, primarily, being done through the
development and enhancement of the digital offer.
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Suppliers

The company relies on a large number of suppliers supplying products and services across a wide range of activity. It is
important to the company that it has good, strong and mutually beneficial business relationships with the right suppliers
and, on the basis that a significant element of some of our Skills and Employment programmes are sub-contracted, this
would also include those sub-contractors as the quality of their activity reflects on the company.

With the introduction of a dedicated procurement function in 2016, the approach to supplier engagement has impraved
as the company seeks to leverage the relationship it has with its suppliers through an increase in sacial value, now
accounting for a significant part of any tendering exercise. Given the relationship that the company has with place, this
social value is delivered across local communities and environments. Qver the past four years, the directors have also
reviewed, annually, the company's Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement which sets out steps to prevent
modern slavery in our business and supply chains through engagement with its suppliers and the development of an
action plan regularly monitered and managed by SMT. This has resulted in enhanced supplier relationships providing
greater sacial value to the geographical areas in which the Growth Company operates.

Commissioners

An integral part of the success of the company is down to its relationships with all of its commissianers. Commissioners
such as the ESFA {Education and Skills Funding Agency), DWP (Department of Work and Pensions}, DIT (Department of
International Trade), Natianal Citizen Service, GMCA {Greater Manchester Combined Authority) provide the epportunity
for the company to make a difference across the sectars in which it operates. This funding is the lifeblood of the
company and allows the company to operate as a prime or sub-contractor across a number of geographical areas in
England. The continuation of these relationships and associated funding is down to quality of service and regular
engagement with all of the company’s commissioners.

This engagement takes place across several levels of the business, such as regular commissioner meetings, delivery
partner meetings, external audits and one-to-one contact and has become even more critical since the onset of the
Covid-19 pandemic where it has been necessary to alter service delivery models, all of which have been dore in
conjunction with the company’s commissioners and all have helped ensure the continuation of activity and survival of
many of its smaller clients through business support and business finance activity. This has resulted in improved working
relationships with all commissioners ensuring that service quality is maintained for the ultimate beneficiaries of the
various programmes.

Our people

The commitment, skills and experience of the people employed throughout the company are integral to the company's
long-term success and embodiment of its values. Staff attraction and retention is crucial to this success and the company
continues to strive to become an ‘employer of choice’ through the support of physical and mental well-being of its staff,
in turn, creating the environment for individuals to develop.

Engagement with our peaple is paramount with the primary mechanism for staff engagement and feedback is, primarily,
through the Employee Consultative Committees {ECCs). The ECCs have been established for several years and act as
canduits for decisions/ consultations affecting staff. During 2019/20, for example, this included the move to a more
agile way of working, through its Work Your Way programme, allowing staff to work more remotely, dress for their day
and work mare flexible hours. The benefit has been improved staff retention and ensured that the move to more
extreme agile working, enforced at the beginning of the first national lockdown in March, was a relatively seamless
transition. Other methods of engagement include regular bi-annual staff surveys, weekly staff communications from
the CEO and an annual staff conference. Additionally, 40 Mental Health First Aiders were trained during the year and
have been a source of support for staff since March. Performance STAR Awards were also introduced acknowledging
and rewarding high performing staff building on the success of GC's existing peer-to-peer staff recognition scheme,
Valued STAR. This has resulted in a more satisfied and engaged workforce along with improved staff retention.
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Partners

The company aperates in partnership with a number of key public and private sector stakehalders, integral to the
achievement of community and enviranmental ohjectives wider than its awn. These partners include, but are not
limited to, the GMCA , represented on the Growth Company Board, and the GMLEP [Greater Manchester Local
Enterprise Partnership). The company recognises that it can add value to lacal communities by regular engagernent with
such stakehaolders and working on mutually beneficial projects and programmes.

Whilst these relationships have been essential since the start of the Covid-19 pandemic as the company has worked
with the GMCA, GMLEP and other partners on Covid-19 taskforces building business resilience, a good example of this
partnership work was in response to the closure of the Thomas Cook which affected 2,300 individuals across the North
West. The company’s response involved setting up a dedicated website and cantact centre within 24 hours of closure
and creating 8 GM Taskforce. An initial jobs fair was organised with over 1,000 former staff attending. This has resulted
in much mare effective partnerships with the ability to react quickly to crises and opporiunities.

Lenders

Continued access to finance is of vital importance 1o the success of the company, particularly, given the nature of its
funding. Whilst the company tries to limit debt, there are occasions when debt finance is required though this has been
limited to specific parts of the company which are in receipt of funding in arrears.

The company maintains regular dialague, through the Chief Financial Officer, with the company’s bank, NatWest and
during 2019/20, transferred the outstanding mortgage on the company’s investment property from the Co-op Bank to
NatWest. NatWaest also provide the £2 million overdraft facility for the company. Regular engagement also takes place
with the GMCA who have provided a £1m loan facility which, whilst due to expire in March 2020, was extended by the
GMCA to March 2021 as a result of Covid-19. This has resulted in stronger partnerships with a deeper understanding
of shared issues and mutually heneficial opportunities.

Principal decisions

For the purpases of this statement, the directors regard their principal decisions as not only those that are material to
the company but also those that are signilicant to any of the company’s principal stakeholder groups. Implicit in making
these decisions was the desirability to maintain a reputation for high standards of conduct and the need to act tairly as
between members of the company.

Consequences of Covid-19 .
An averview of the various actions and decisions taken by the company in light of Covid-19 is set out within the Strategic
Report.

Approval of a 3 year growth strategy

In December 2019, the Board approved a new three year strategy for 2020 — 2023 including a new GC vision and
ambition. This had been at the reguest of the Board to take a longer term view of activity in recognition that the
company’s policy and commercial enviranment is continually changing and, of course, has subsequently dramatically
changed as a result of Covid-19. The ambition set out five key themes which had been developed by SMT in conjunctian
with its staff and partners, as principal stakeholder groups, as set out above. The resufting business plans will cascade
down into team plans and staff personal objectives. Clearly, this will impact on ail of the company’s stakeholders as it is
implemented.

Approval of 2020/21 business pilan and budget

The annual business plan and budget was developed from the agreed three year strategy and presented to the Board
in February. Both were produced prior to the Covid-13 pandemic and, whilst approved by the Board, it was
acknowledged that uncertain times ahead would impact on the delivery of both the business ptan and budget and
therefore agreed to receive gperational and financial performance updates. These updates are detailed under the
Cavid-19 section of the Strategic Report, but the Board remained praoactively engaged in manitoring and approving key
decisions to ensure continuance of activity and sustainable financia! performance. As with the strategy, this will impact
on all of the company’s stakeholders.
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Capital investment in IT infrastructure

It is critical for the company to maintain and enhance its quality of service delivery and, despite the impact of Covid-19,
in March, the Board approved the necessary investment in migrating to a new cloud-based approach as part of the new
IT strategy and the replacement of the company’s existing IT infrastructure nearing the end of its supportable lifecycle.
This is essential expenditure and has allowed the company to manage all of its IT services through a single application
which will improve the ability to scale and onboard new services and applications. The main stakeholder beneficiaries
of this investment will be our people, clients and commissioners as we seek to improve both internal and external IT
systems.

Approval of lease-break at Lee House

The company had an opportunity to break its lease on the first floor of Lee House in June 2020. Whilst, initially, the
proposal to the Board was not to exercise the break, given the short time since the commencement of the Work Your
Way programme, the onset of Covid-19 and the realisation that, through the previous investment in IT and the culturai
change adopted by staff in relation to remote working, consideration could be given to exercising the break. This
decision was duly approved by the Board in June 2020. The main impact of this decision will be on our people as we
progress the agile way of working.

Appointment of Managing Director of GC Skills and Education

The operational and financial performance within the GC Skills and Education division had, for some time, been
challenging and, with the Board approving a turnaround plan within this division during 2019/20, a new Managing
Director, Jon-Paul Rimington, was appointed in January 2020. An experienced Director at operational and board level,
Jon-Paul has over 20 years’ experience within the work-based learning and Apprenticeships sector. The main impact of
this decision will be on our people, commissioners and clients as we develop new approaches and seek to improve
service quality.

Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR}

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting Regulations (SECR)

While some of the Growth Company’s subsidiaries are not obligated under the SECR, the company has chosen to report
its carbon emissions for the entire group for financial year 2019/20. This reflects the fact that as we use our office space
in an agile way, apportionment of emissions to specific companies could not be based on actual usage of space, In
addition, the company recognizes the value and importance of measuring our carbon emissions across those areas over
which it has financial contral. We have included Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions as well as some Scope 3 emissions
which relate to business travel.

Our Road to Zero Carbon

2019 has seen a significant and sustained increase in the awareness of a range of environmental issues, whether it is
single use plastics, air pollution or Climate Change. This zeitgeist saw the alignment of citizens, business and government
in a realisation that the time for radical environmental action is now. While Covid -19 is clearly the current focus, it is
also clear that concern over Climate Change remains and will be the defining challenge of the decade. Our narrative
has moved fram the passive description of Climate Change to a call for action to address a Climate Emergency; as
declared by the UK Government, the Devalved Administrations and the Greater Manchester Combined Authority.
Significant as this is, the changes in UK law to move from a legally binding target of 80% carbon reduction by 2050 to
being net carbon zero by then is a gamechanger.

Greater Manchester’s target is ta be net carbon zero by 2038, recognising both the latest scientific evidence and the
early adopter advantages which can be secured by making a transition to a zero-carbon economy. As an Anchor
institution in Greater Manchester and a key partner to the GMCA, GC will support this ambition by becoming carbon
neutral by this date.

Building on the back of our ESOS (Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme) assessment we undertook, our first carbon
footprint was for calendar year 2018, and since then we have followed the same data collection pratacols for the SECR,
namely:
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Electricity - We use an energy broker, Apollo, for all the electricity we directly purchase from suppliers. The readings
are collected via AMR's [Automatic Meter Reading) and collated and provided to us by the broker. Thisincludes Warren
Bruce Court wheare we let space to tenants, where the rental costs include utilities. For thase sites where we do not
buy electricity directly, we use data provided to us by our fandiords from sub meters. In January we changed a number
of our elactricity contracts 1o renewable energy; for this report we have used a place as opposed to a market-based
mechanism, converting XWh to CO: using the Greenhouse Gas Reporting Conversion Factor 2019 of 0.25560
kgCO2/KWh, as most of cur emissions occurred in 2019,

Gas - As with electricity, we use an energy broker for directly purchased gas. Far those sites where the landford buys
the gas, we have sub meter data. At Churchgate House, where we have shared space with a number of other tenants,
usage is proportioned on floor space as the gas is used for space heating. To convert KWh to CO» we used the
Greenhouse Gas Reporting Conversian Factor 2019, 0.18385 kgC0z/KWh.

Grey Fleet - Afl staff who drive for company business claim expenses via our online system. This captures both how far
the individual, has driven and what car they were in. This enables us ta determine CO: emissions based an the
manufacturers published data for the specific make and model.

Company Vehicles - The only company vehicles are diesel minibuses. Fuel is purchased with fuel cards which recard the
number of litres purchased and this is then converted to CO2z using the Greenhouse Gas Reporting Conversion Factor
2019 of 2.59411kgC0x% / litre.

Rail and Flights - We use an external company to book our flights and rail journeys. As part of this service they provide
us with CO2 emissions for every journey based on distance, mode of transport, and for flights, the carrier.

LPG and Propane - This is used in our training centres. Purchase records are kept, and these are converted into CO:
using the Greenhouse Gas Reporting Conversion Factor 2019. 2.93686 kgC02/kg and 2.61026 kgCOz/kg.

Energy and Carbon Footprint

The carbon emissions for 2019/20 were 817 tonnes €Oz, This will be the baseline year for our SECR
reporting going farward and gives a carbon intensity ratio of 7.636 tonnes COse per £1tm of turnover, and
6,947 kWh per £1m turnover.
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A detailed breakdown of the usage and emissions by source can be found in Table 1. Where possible this also includes
the kWh figures. For illustrative purposes only, Table 1 also includes the carbon emissions for calendar year 2018.

Table 1.1 Carbon and Energy Data 2019/20

Source Direct Purchase Indirect Total Total 2018
2019/20 kwh Purchase kWh kWh COze tonnes CQOz: tonnes
Electricity 938,904 479,127 1,418,031 362 551
Gas 356,727 129,159 485,886 89 119
Minibuses 154,374 - 154,374 40 44
LPG 34,739 - 34,733 8 8
Propane 4,959 - 4,959 1 1
Rail Not available - - 9 : 6
Grey Fleet 743,337 - 743,337 184 192
Flights 480,301 - 480,301 124 152
‘:otal 2,713,341 608,286 3,321,627 817 ‘ 1,073

Note: it is not possible to determine the kWh for Rail as this is a combination of electricity and diesel which is not known.

Energy and carbon reduction actions in 2019/20
In 2018, as part of the wider 3 year plan, approval was secured from the Board ta become net carben zero within 3

years. Champions were nominated within the Board and Senior Management and Leadership teams. The plan consisted
of 5 key steps:

1. Define the scope of our Carbon Footprint;

2. Determine the emissions from 2019/20 as a base year and measure every year thereafter;

3. Identify and implement activities which would reduce our energy consumption and so our emissions using our ESOS
recommendations as a guide;

4. ‘Offset’ the residual emissions; and .

5. Verify the validity of our claims using an external standard such as PAS 2060, or the World Resources Institute GHG
{GreenHouse Gas) Protocol.

This decision, combined with our ESOS work and wider societal awareness, has resulted in a sustained focus on our
energy usage and carbon emissians, with a higher degree of consciousness of individual actions and their environmental
impacts. To help us drive this agenda forward we developed a new Zero Carbon Lead pasition within the group;
unfortunately this was paused due to Covid- 19.

Our in-house Environmental Auditors undertook an estate wide energy audit as part of our ESQOS compliance process,
the findings and recommendations from which were shared widely with relevant colleagues to action. This formed the
basis of our 2018 carbon footprint which was discussed with our newly formed Climate Action Group, a bottom up
initiative representing staff from across the group.

Electricity consumption is our largest source of emissions, with the majority of this being used to run HVAC {Heating,
Ventilation and Air Conditioning) systems at Lee House, and HVAC and our servers at Warren Bruce Court, where we
are the landlord. We have introduced a policy on heating/cocling and a ‘dead zone’ to reduce energy consumption
while providing a consistent temperature range. We have taken the decision going forward to only buy renewahle
energy; as such by January 2021, two thirds of our electricity consumption will be zero carbon. The remaining third is
bought by our landlords and we plan to work with them to encourage them to switch to renewable sources.

10
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Energy and carbon reduction actions in 2019/20 (continued)

Our grey fleet had seen a 20% drap in emissians as a result of the introduction of our Agile Working Policy in 2018. We
recognise that after electricity it is our second largest source of emissions and by 2020/21 it will be the largest, and one
we have no direct control over. In addition, our grey fleet impacts local air quality and so has wider health and wellbeing
implications. Ta this end we looked to introduce an employee electric car scheme under salary sacrifice, which will be
accessible to all staff. By encouraging staff to switch to electric vehicles we hope to see a reduction in our grey fleet
carbon emissions. Having received tender responses, the process was paused due to Covid- 19 as suppliers were unable
to undertake credit checks. This initiative will hopefully came on stream in 2020/21. Further reducing our transport
emissions, our minibus fleet was also updated with newer more efficient vehicles to reduce fuel consumption.

While our 2018 carhon footprint assessment was aver the calendar year as opposed to financial year, overall we saw a
24% reduction in our carbon emissions; just under 8% of this reduction was due to the lower carbon intensity of

electricity generation.

Table 2: Changes in Carbon Emissions based on calendar yearl 2018 compared to financial year ended 31 March 2020

Source Change in emissions tCO2e Percentage Change
Electricity* -189 -34%

Gas -30 ~25%
Minibuses -4 -9%

LPG 0 0%
Propane D 0%

Rail 3 50%

Grey Fleet -8 -4%

Flights -28 -18%

Tatat -256 -24%

*17% of this reduction is due to the lower carbon intensity of electricity generation in 2020 vs 2018.

11
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Operating performance

i Turnover i Surplus/{deficit) before taxation
? 2019/20 ~ 2018/19 2017/18 | 2019/20 | 2018/19 | 2017/18
E__ £'000 £°000 £°000 £000 £°000 £'000
| Aspire Recruitment Partnership 2,299 2,590 2,803 - - -
Lentre for Assessment 3,473 3,138 2,834 135 151 170
| Challenge for Change 444 375 363 - 1 -
Chamberlink {Business Support Solutions) 4,288 ° 4,907 | 4,118 216 262 170
Greater Manchester Business Support 16,488 13,816 19,775 147 40 79
Improvement Development Growth 3,152 3,953 ‘ 3,638 51 338 68
! Marketing Manchester 4,744 5759 ' 7,609 69 (194} 30
r National Schools Training 425 826 | 1,373 {95) {134) {203}
i North West Apprenticeship Company 502 398 444 5 11 -
| Recovery Works 815 ! 781 | 206 - {9} -
Skills and Works Solutions 51,656 36,969 42,418 {1,294) (2,181) {1,265)
L]’he Enterprise Fund {GC Business Finance) 3,386 . 3,023 | 3,454 597 619 1,081
i The Manufacturing Institute 1,966 1,729 | 1,986 {78} 65 698
The Growth Company & Consolidation 2,857 {1,164) : 3,669 593 1,257 1212
Adjustments ! f
TOTAL 96,495 | 77,100 | 94,690 346 226 1,040
. Consolidated statement of comprehensive 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18
! income £'000 £7000 £'000
" Income 96,495 77,100 94,690
i Operating surplus 255 652 693
t‘nurplus for the year before taxation 346 226 1,040
 Consolidated statement of financial position 2019/20 2018/19 2017718
; £°000 £'000 £000
[‘ Current assets 48,643 34,365 40,095
‘r Cash at bank and in hand 12,818 9,899 13,474
Net current assets 12,360 12,809 12,623
Reserves 13,969 15,184 15,167
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT — THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Performance review of the business

Overall group turnover for the year was £96,495k (2019: £77,100k) and closing members’ funds as at 31 March 2020
were £13,969k (2019: £15,184k). The surplus for the year (before tax and pension movements) was £346k (2019: £226k).
The actuarial loss on the defined benefit schernes of £1,422k (2019: £144k) resulted in total comprehensive lass for the
vear of £1,215k (2019: income of £17k). The group generated a small surplus before taxation in year comparable to the
previous year despite a 25% increase in turnover. However, it should be noted that a significant element of this turnover
was due to the implementation of the riew ESFA/ESF and National Citizen Service programmes within Skills & Work
Solutions Limited (expected total contract values of £144m}. GC Skills, within Skills & Work Solutions Limited, continued
to experience challenges through low learner volumes and outcomes and was the main contributar to the deficit before
pension movements of £1,294k in Skills & Work Solutions. Following a management restructure at the end of 2019/20,
these challenges are being addressed, although have been further exacerbated through the impact of Covid-19. The
overall graup surplus was in line with hudget expectations.

Turnover was as budgeted and was a 25% increase (£19.4m) from 2019. Whilst there were marginal increases and
decreases in turnover across the rest of the group, the source of the increase in turnover was within two programmes
commencing in 2019/20 — ESF/ESFA funded contracts and National Citizen Service, GC Employment programmes within
Skills & Waork Solutions Limited. However, the cost-recovery basis of the initial up-front implementation costs of these
new programmes largely offset the turnover increase and, in the main, account for the £14.6m increase in other external
expenses and ather operating expenses. The new programmes account for the 13% increase in staff costs and the
increase in staffing numbers of 104 from 1,302 in 2019.

Balance Sheet

The net assets position of £13,969k (2019: £15,184k) is net of a defined henefit pension liability of £6,490k (2019
£5,018k). Net current assets of £12,360k had reduced by £449k from the previous year (2019: £12,809). Other
intangible assets increased to £1,003k (2019: £567k), due to software assets not yet been brought into use within the
group. The valuation of the group's investment property increased to £5m {2019: £4.7m) due to a revaluation in March
2020. Investments increased to £1,222k due ta additional investments into the shares of unlisted companies within TEF
{2019: £498k}. The main mavements within working capital included an inrrease in cash of £2,919k to £12,818k from
the previous year (2019: £9,899k). The working capital generated by the new programmes in Skills & Work Solutions
resulted in anincrease of £11,865k in Debtors falling due within one year, offset by the increase of £14,727k in Creditors:
amaounts falling due within one year.

The main movements in provisions during the year related to dilapidations and pensions. Following a review of the
group’s overall dilapidations provision, there was a £858k increase in the provision to £1,116k (2019: £258k). The
reduction in the discount rate assumption used for the actuarial valuation of the defined benefit pension schemes along
with a reduction of the fair value of plan assets by £1.2m resulted in a £1.42m actuarial loss.
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT — THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Going concern

Based on the group’s forecasts, the directars have adopted the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements. The directors have made this assessment after consideration of the group’s cash flows and related
assumptians. In making this assessment the directors have given consideration to the potential impact of the Covid-19
pandemic on the cashflows and liguidity of the group over the next 12 month period. The process that the directars
have undertaken has included the consideration of regular updates from the executive, the consideration of several
financial models and farecasts and decisions taken to right size the business and utilise government initiatives such as
the job retention scherne. The group’s financial modelling has considered the impact of additional downside scenarios
with greater restrictions on movement and social distancing, and a more severe impact on the group’s cash flows and
liguidity as a result of potential further loss of revenue. Whilst this is quite difficult to fully assess within the current
climate, the downsides have included the impact on the following services:

«  current and future commercial income;

s new learner starts;

s the ability to provide services relying on physical activity such as the National Citizen Service and Challenge for
Change; and,

* the tourism and hospitality sectar, particularly affecting Marketing Manchester,

Continuing dialogue with commissioners and the digitisation of delivery is helping to mitigate some of these risks which
are likely to remain throughout the next twelve months and beyond. The bidding environment, however, currently
remains relatively buoyant with recent bidding wins announced and opportunities, such as the new Kickstart
pragramme, also helping to offset downsides elsewhere across the group. The directors have, furthermare, previously
demaonstrated that swift action can be taken to reduce the cost base and alter service delivery madels were appropriate.

With regards to the sensitivity of income and its impact on the financial position of the group, there is no direct
correlation between a reduction in income and profitability due ta the differing nature of funding/income across the
group. Despite the ongoing national and local restrictions imposed by the government, which could further damage
confidence around future activity, we remain confident that a break-even position for 2020/21 is attainable and we
remain on a trajectory to achieve this. A prudent approach will be taken to the development of the 2021/22 budget to
ensure sufficient headraom in achieving ongaing financial sustainability. The holding company itself has a net liability
balance sheet pasition at 31 March 2020. However, whilst in the medium term this position will be rectified through
the retention of overhead rebates to other subsidiaries, the parent company operates the central treasury function and
sois able to draw on other subsidiary cash reserves if required.

in performing the assessment of whether the group will have sufficient liquidity within the next 12 months, the directors
have carried out a preliminary assessment of the additianal options that may be available to the group to mitigate the
impact on its cash flows and liquidity in the event of longer periods of restriction via lacalised and national leckdowns
and greater reductions in revenues resulting from changes in customer behaviours. In particular directors have
considered (i} additional reductions in expenditure at certain times to improve liquidity; (ii) the potential of the group
to access additional bank facilities where the directors note that the group's existing £2m overdraft may be extended
with the consent of the banks; or {iii) the additional support of key stakeholders and commissioners remodelling
outcome based contractual arrangements to cast recovery models in the medium term, if necessary. Liquidity
assessments have alsc factored in the repayment of the £1m GMCA loan due to be repaid in March 2021

The directors have concluded that the potential impact of the Covid-19 pandemic described above and their ability and
track record to react quickly to enact possible mitigating actions reflects the group and company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, For these reasons, whilst there are identified risks and a degree of uncertainty in matters outside of
the company’s contral, the directors continue to adopt a going concern basis for the preparation of the financial
statements. Accordingly, these financial statements do not include any adjustments to the carrying amount or
classification of assets and liabilities that would result if the group and company were unable to continue as a going
concern,
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT — RISK MANAGEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Risks and Uncertainties

The group operates a risk register which documents risks across the group, together with mitigating actions. The register
is monitored by the Senior Management Team at regular intervals and is also reviewed by the Audit Committee and
main group Board. The following is not an exhaustive list from the register but highlights the main themes of risk which
are considered to be currently facing the group.

The table beflow shows a summary of the key risks facing the group.

Risk

_[ Mitigation

impact of Covid-19 an
revenue and the ability to
deliver activity

e Continuing  dialogue with all commissioners and
agreement to move to cost recovery madels in the
short term and changing funding frameworks in the
medium to long term.

s Dynamic financial modelling responsive to changes in
government policy, commissioners’ positions and
commercialfeconomic environment.

e Increased monitoring of supply chain  ensuring
continuity of provision and rapid response to shift to
new suppliers or in-house if necessary.

« Digitisation of detivery in B2B commercial and other
client activity e.g. learning enviranment.

* Ongoing monitering of cashflow — regular short and
lang term forecasting, ongoing dialogue with finance
providers, accessibility to short term finance if
required.

Change in risk/uncertainty

Increased risk as risk did

not exist in previous year

Reduction in EU funding
for business support
following the United
Kingdom'’s departure
from the El)

s EU funding has been secured for business support
programmes to the end of 2021. Final calls for available
ERDF funding to une 2023 opened towards the end of
2019, with outline applications submitted by GMBS
already accepted. Full applications naw in progress to
seLure.

ﬁanges in national and
local Government policy
that may result in
significant and
detrimental changes

» GC is closely monitoring any changes to government
policy which might have an impact on programme
design, contracting arrangements or service delivery.

Reduced risk in relation
to Furopean funding but
increased risk in relation
to match funding

Increased risk in regard
ta Covid-19 and Brexit
political and economic
uncertainty

Loss of key members of
staff and inability to
attract new staff with
necessary skills and
experience

T # Robust performance review system in place
s [iP Silver Standard achieved
® Star performance awards system in place

Reduced risk with
increased staff retention
numbiers and agile Work
Your Way programime
implemented

Potential of cyber threats
disrupting business
operations and damaging
reputation

+ Move to Office 365 Cloud based solution
« )mprovement of firewalls and intrusjion

* Regutar penetration testing and social engineering
tests

« Continued Cyber Essentials accreditation

Reduced risk due to
increased investment in
penetration testing and
achievement of Cyber
Essential accreditation.

Continued external
environment Impacting
on GC Skills and
Education performance
through learner numbers
and apprenticeship levy

o Skills review undertaken in 2019/20
* New MD appoainted Januaty 2020
» Full restructure implemented summer 2020

s Re-purposing and re focusing of activity across all
sectors

Reduced risk with |
appointment of new MD
and implementation of
turnaround plan

Risk Mitigation

All risks and mitigating actions are iogged on a Risk Register, which is reviewed and updated every quarter, and
presented to the Board for its consideration. Existing risks are removed when they have been appropriately mitigated,
and new risks are added as they are identified. In addition, the diversity of funding streams across the group limits

expasure from policy shifts.
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT — FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Corporate Governance
Governance arrangements include advisory boards made up of Non-Executive Directars and specialist advisers to deal
with the particular areas of the group's activities. The advisory boards cover:

e Business Support and Business Finance.
s ‘Warkforce Development.
¢ Internationalisation and Marketing.

Future Developments

All of our future developments are outlined in the annual business plan and reflect the five thematic aims outlined in
aur strategy and vision. In considering these future developments in light of the current Covid-19 pandemic, we continue
to plan to achieve these aims though the milestones to achieve them aver the next three years will clearly change, given
the current economic environment. The aim to maintain and enhance financial sustainability also remains valid though
any planned increase in turnaver is now more susceptible to the changes in economic environment as highlighted
elsewhere within the Strategic Report.

* To be a market leader — GC's ambition is to be the best-performing provider of business, people and place-
based support services. We will focus on services which deliver economic growth and prasperity which is
inclusive and sustainable. We will be trusted by businesses, individuals and government to deliver high-quality,
high-impact services which contributes significantly to the UK Economy.

* increasing reach - GC will collaborate with government, businesses and communities across the UK, in all major
cities and target international markets. Through leveraging innovative digital channels our annuaf customer
base will exceed 200,000 individuals and 60,000 husinesses.

e  Attracting and retaining the brightest and best - GC will be recagnised and accredited as a leading employer,
attracting and retaining highly skilled staff. Our staff will take ownership of their own development and benefit
from an expansive workforce development offer. GC will provide each team member with a competitive reward
and recognition package and in return they deliver exceptional perfarmance. GC will have a highly engaged
and diverse workforce reflective of the communities in which we wark.

+  Financial sustainability - GC will aim to generate at least a 5% net surplus from all nan-grant funded activity
and has increased its turnover year-on-year. This will enable us to maintain a strong balance sheet,
demonstrates strength in financial reserves/liquidity with the ability to support reinvestment. GC will have a
balanced revenue mix with a focus on annually increasing commercial income.

+ Social value and environmental sustainability - GC will be an accredited social enterprise and will be widely
recognised as a leading provider of social value impact in the way we deliver each service. GC willbe net Carbon
zere and through its activity will influence individuals and other businesses to adopt more environmentally
sustainable business practices.

The report of the Board of Management was approved on 17 November 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

P A Simpson
Secretary
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the year ended 31 March 2020

The directors present their annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2620.
The directors have presenied the future developments of the group within the Strategic Report.

Principal activities
The Growth Company, a company limited by guarantee, is a non-profit-distributing group of companies delivering
publicly funded and commercial services to employers, individuals, the public sector, and schools and colleges.

The principal activity of the Company continued to be that of the holding company for The Growth Company group of
companies through which all the central corporate costs and overheads are held and recharged to the group's
subsidiaries.

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as follows:

R Topiiss

M Blackburn OBE

} Boardman

City Mayor P Dennett

i Griffiths (Resigned 16 December 2019)
M Hughes MBE

Clir Sir Richard Leese CBE {Resigned 30 October 2020)
V Murray OBE

Clir £ Adia (Resigned 26 fuly 2019}

C Boshell {Resigned 26 July 2019)
AShah

Ms L Feelay {Appointed 28 June 2019)

E Sheldon {Appointed 24 March 2020}
P A Simpson {Appointed 24 March 2020)
CHr M Cox {Appointed 26 July 2019}
Ctir E A Wilson {Appointed 26 June 2020}
M isap (Appointed 27 July 2020)

Results and dividends

The resuits for the year are set out on page 22. In response ta Covid-19, the directors have taken action to mitigate the
consequential and sighificant impact on the company’s operation. Al of these actions, including a staff restructuring
pregramme and breaking a major lease, were taken post-year end and are, therefore, not reflected in the financial
statements of 31 March 2020. In addition to this, an extension was granted regarding loan facilities of the £im foan
from the GMCA from 31 March 2020 to 31 March 2021, which is reflected within these financial statements.

Post reporting date events
More details of post balance sheet events can be found in note 31.

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions
The company has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors during the year. These
provisions remain in force at the reporting date.

Disabled parsons
Applications for employment by disabied persons are always fully considered, hearing in mind the aptitudes of the
applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effert is made to ensure that their
employment within the group continues and that the appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the group that
the training, career development and promaotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of
ather employees.
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
BIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Employee involvement

The group’s policy is to consult with employees, predominantly through the Employee Consultative Committees {(ECCs).
The ECCs have been established for several years and act as conduits for decisions/ consultations affecting staff. Other
methods of engagement include regular bi-annual staff surveys, weekly staff communications from the CEQ and an
annual staff conference, all of which seek to achieve a common awareness on the part of all employees of the financial
and ecenomic factors affecting the group’s performance.

Auditor
RSM UK Audit LLP have indicated their willingness to be reappointed for another term and appropriate arrangements
have been put in place for them to be deemed reappointed as auditors in the absence of an Annual General Meeting.

Statement of disclosure to auditor

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the company's auditor is unaware. Additionally, each director has taken all the necessary steps
that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of all relevant audit information and to
establish that the company's auditor is aware of that information,

By order of the board

P A Simpson

Secretary
17 November 2020
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2020

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic report, the Directors’ report and the financial statements in
accardance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that faw the board
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable laws). Under Company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements untess they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
group and the company, and of the surplus or deficit of the group for that period. in preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

s make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to praesume that the
group and the company will continue in bhusiness.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
group’s and the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
group and the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsibie for safeguarding the assets of the group and the company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Growth Company Limited (the ‘parent company') and its subsidiaries
(‘the group’) for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of financial position, the company statement of financial position, the censolidated
statement of changes in equity, the company statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting $tandard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” {United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinian the financial statements:
» givea true and fair view of the state of the group and parent company's affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of the
Group's deficit for the year then ended;
& have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and,
+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) {ISA's (UK)} and applicahle law.
Our respansibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's respansibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and parent company in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the iSA's (UK] require us to report to
you where:
. the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; ar
. the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the group's or the parent company's ahility to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our repart, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other infaormation. if, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nathing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In cur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:
. the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
. the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified materia) misstatements in the strategic report and the directors'
report,

We have nothing to repart in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in aur opinion:

s adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us: or
the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting recards and returns; or
+ certain disdosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
s we have not received ali the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement set out on page 19, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
interhal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whale are free fram
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinibn.
Reasnnable assurance is & high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISA’s (UK} will always detect a material misstalement when it exists Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considerad material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonahly be expected to influence the ecunomic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located an the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: hitp:/fwww.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibifities. This deseription forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept ar assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Eao v i A L)

Hugh Fairclough {Senior Statutory Auditer}

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

3 Hardman Street

Manchester

M3 3HF

10 December 2020
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Notes 2020 2019
£000 £'000
TURNOVER 3 96,495 77,100
Other operating income 689 604
Other external expenses (38,151} (19,108}
Staff costs 4 (43,604) (38,563}
Depreciation and amortisation 6 {1,850) {1,410)
Other operating expenses (13,324) (17,971)
OPERATING SURPLUS 6 255 652
Interest receivable and similar income 7 14 27
Interest payable and similar expenses 8 (223) {303)
Fair value gains and losses on investment portfolio 9 - {150}
Fair value gains and losses on investment properties 14 300 -
SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION 346 226
Tax on surplus 10 (139) (65)
SURPLUS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 267 161
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension schemes 24 (1,422) (144)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE {LOSS}/ INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR (1,215) 17

The campany is limited by guarantee so the {loss)/income far the financial year, whilst attributable to the owners of the
parent company, is not distributable to them.

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the financial year, whilst attributable to the owners of the parent company, is
not distributable to them.
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED Company Registration No. 02443911
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
For the year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
Notes £°000 £'000
FIXED ASSETS
Goadwill 11 134 153
Other intangible assets 11 1,003 567
Total intangible assets 1,137 720
Tangible fixed assets 12 3,330 3,611
tnvestment praperties 14 5,000 4,706
Investments 15 1,222 498
10,689 9,529
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks 17 - 10
Debtors falling due after more than one year 18 2,154 2,650
Debtars falling due within one year 18 33,671 21,806
Cash at bank and in hand 19 12,818 9,899
48,643 34,365
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within one year 20 {36,283) {21,556}
NET CURRENT ASSETS 12,360 12,809
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 23,049 22,338
CREDITORS: amounts falling due after more than one year 21 (1,435) (1,839)
Provisions for liabilities 23 {1,155) {297}
Net assets excluding pension liability 20,459 20,202
Defined benefit pension liability 24 {6,490} {5,018)
NET ASSETS 13,969 15,184
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Revaluation reserve 25 1,442 1,142
Profit and lass reserve 25 12,527 14,042
TOTAL EQUITY 13,969 15,184

The notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on .1
on its behalf by:

bl P Tyt

M Hughes MBE Richard Topliss
Director Director

and signed
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Company Registration No. 02443911

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible fixed assets
Investment properties
Investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

CREDITORS: amounts falling due within one year
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

CREDITORS: amounts falling due after more than one year

Provisions for liabilities

NET LIABILITIES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Revaluation reserve
Profit and Loss reserve

TOTAL EQUITY

Notes

13
14
15

18

20

21
23

25
25

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
2,911 3,195
5,000 4,700

568 568
8,479 8,463
8,673 8,483
2,966 1,784

11,639 10,267
(18,891) {18,311)
(7,252) {8,044}
1,227 419
(1,355) (1,259)
(978) {246)
(1,106) (1,086)
1,442 1,142
{2,548) (2,228)
{1,106} (1,086)

As permitted by s408 Companies Act 2006, the company has not presented its own profit and loss account and related

notes as it prepares group accounts. The company’s deficit for the year was £20k {2019: Deficit of £1,398k).

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and autherised for issue on ...17.November 2020 and

are signed on its behalf by:

IZ S LA
e gl

M Hughes MBE Richard Topliss

Director Director
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
CONSGLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Revaluation Profit and Total
reservé  loss reserve
£000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2018 1,142 14,025 15,167
Year ended 31 March 2019
Surplus for the year - 161 161
Other comprehensive income net of taxation:
Actuarial losses on defined benefit ptans - {144) (144)
Total comprehensive income for the year 17 17
Balance at 31 March 2019 1342 14,042 15184
Year ended 31 March 2020
Surplus for the year - 207 207
Other comprehensive {oss net of taxation:
Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans - {1,422) {1,422)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (1,215) (1,215)
Transfers 300 {300) -
Balance at 31 March 2020 1,442 13,527 13,969
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Balance at 1 April 2018

Year ended 31 March 2019
Defitit and total comprehensive loss for the year

Balance at 31 March 2019

Year ended 31 March 2020
Deficit and total comprehensive loss for the year

Transfers

Balance at 31 March 2020
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Revaluation Profit and Total
reserve  loss reserve

£000 £'000 £'000

1,142 {830) 312

{1,398) (1,398)

1,142 {2,228) {1,086)

- 20 (20)

300 {300} -

1,442 {2,548) (1,106)




THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 21 March 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated/ {absorbed) by operations

Interest paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash inflow/ {outflow) from operating activities
Investing activities

Purchase of intangible fixed assets

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Purchase of fixed asset investments

{nterest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds of new bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Net cash generated from/ {used in) financing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Relating to:

Cash at bank and in hand

Bank overdrafts included in creditars payable within one year
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2020 2019
Notes £000 £'000
26 6,141 {858)
(118) {205)
{138) (40}
5,885 (1,103)

(436) {330)

(1,828) (1,261)

(724 (648)

14 27

{2,974) {2,212)

1,600 -

(1,590} (262)

10 (262}

2,921 {3,577}

9,897 13,474

12,818 9,897

12,818 9,899




THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Company information
The Growth Company ("the company”) is a private company limited by guarantee and is registered, domiciled
and incorporated in England and Wales. The registered office is Lee House, 90 Great Bridgewater Street,
Mancheaster, M1 51W.

The group consists of The Growth Company Limited and all its subsidiaries. The company's and the group's
principal activities and nature of its operations are disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland" {"FRS 102"} and the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 in
relation to Large and Medium Companies.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary
amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £'000.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for investment
properties. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below,

The company is a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 102, being a member of a group where the parent of
that group prepares publicly available consolidated financial statements, including this company, which are
intended to give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the group.

The company has therefore taken advantage of exemptions from the following disclosure requirements for
parent company information presented within the consolidated financial statements:

* Section 4 'Statement of Financial Position' — Reconciliation of the opening and closing number of
shares;

+ Section 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' — Presentation of a statement of cash flow and related notes and
disclosures;

+ Section 11 'Basic Financial Instruments' and Section 12 'Other Financial Instrument Issues' — Carrying
amounts, interest income/expense and net gains/losses for each category of financial instrument;
basis of determining fair values; details of collateral, loan defaults or breaches, details of hedges,
hedging fair value changes recognised in profit or loss and in other comprehensive income;

+ Section 33 'Related Party Disclosures' — Compensation for key management personnel.

The financial statements of the company are consolidated in the financial statements of The Growth Company
Limited (formerly Economic Solutions Limited) and are available from its registered office, Lee House, 90 Great
Bridgewater Street, Manchester, M1 5JW.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate those of The Growth Company Limited and all of its
subsidiaries {i.e. entities that the group controls through its power to govern the financial and operating policies
so as to abtain economic benefits). Subsidiaries acquired during the year are consclidated using the purchase
method. Their results are incorporated from the date that control passes.
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
The results of NPIF NW (Microfinance) Limited Partnership and NWF {Microloans) Limited Partnership have not
been included in the consolidation on the grounds of materiality. ’

All financial statements are made up to 31 March 2020. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by other members of
the group.

All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.

The cost of a business combination is the fair value at the acquisition date of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, and liabilities incurred or assumed, plus costs directly attributable to the business combination. The
excess of the cost of a business combination over the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is recognised as goodwill. The cost of the combination includes the estimated amount of
cantingent consideration that is probable and can be measured reliably and is adjusted for changes in contingent
consideration after the acquisition date.

Pravisional fair values recognised for business combinations in previous periods are adjusted retrospectively for
final fair values determined in the 12 months following the acquisition date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the value of assets (other than goodwill) and liabilities
recognised in a business combination accounted for using the purchase method and the amounts that can be
deducted or assessed for tax, considering the manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or liability is
expected to he recovered or settled. The deferred tax recognised is adjusted against goodwill or negative
goodwill.

Audit exemption of subsidiaries

The following subsidiaries are exempt from the requirements of the UK Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit
of individual accounts by virtue of s479A of the Act. IQC2 Limited {company number 07160834}, The North West
Apprenticeship Company Limited {company number 06251000}, Aspire Recruitment Partnership Limited
{company number 03979566}, Centre For Assessment Limited {company number 04089911}, improvement
Development Growth Limited (company number 04141322} and TMI Enterprises Limited (company number
05774175) and TPMI (Trading) Limited (03004124).

The outstanding Ifabilities at 31 March 2020 of the above named subsidiaries have been guaranteed by the
Company pursuant to s4794A to s479C of the Act.
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED}

Going concern

Based on the group's forecasts, the directors have adopted the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements. The directors have made this assessment after consideration of the group’s cash flows and related
assumptions. In making this assessment the directors have given consideration to the potential impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic on the cashflows and liquidity of the group over the next 12 month period. The process that
the directors have undertaken has included the consideration of regular updates from the executive, the
consideratian of several financial models and forecasts and decisions taken to right size the business and utilise
government initiatives such as the job retention scheme. The group’s financial modelling has considered the
impact of additional downside scenarios with greater restrictions on movement and social distancing, and a more
severe impact on the group’s cash flows and liquidity as a result of potential further loss of revenue. Whilst this
is quite difficult to fully assess within the current climate, the downsides have included the impact on the
following services:

. current and future commercial income;

. new learner starts;

. the ability ta provide services relying on physical activity such as the National Citizen Service and
Challenge for Change; and,

. the tourism and hospitality sector, particularly affecting Marketing Manchester.

Cantinuing dialogue with commissioners and the digitisation of delivery is helping to mitigate seme of these risks
which are likely to remain throughout the next twelve months and beyond. The bidding environment, however,
currently remains relatively buoyant with recent bidding wins announced and opportunities, such as the new
Kickstart programme, also helping to offset downsides elsewhere across the group. The directors have,
furthermore, previously demonstrated that swift action can be taken to reduce the cost base and alter service
delivery models were appropriate.

With regards to the sensitivity of income and its impact on the financial position of the group, there is no direct
correlation between a reduction in income and profitability due to the differing nature of funding/income across
the group. Despite the ongoing national and local restrictions imposed hy the government, which could further
damage confidence around future activity, we remain confident that a break-even position for 2020/21 is
attainable and we remain on a trajectory to achieve this. A prudent approach will be taken to the development
of the 2021/22 budget to ensure sufficient headroom in achieving ongoing financial sustainability. The holding
company itself has a net liability balance sheet position at 31 March 2020. However, whilst in the medium term
this position will be rectified through the retention of overhead rebates to other subsidiaries, the parent
company operates the central treasury function and so is able to draw on other subsidiary cash reserves if
required.

In performing the assessment of whether the group will have sufficient liquidity within the next 12 months, the
directors have carried out a preliminary assessment of the additional options that may be available te the group
to mitigate the impact on its cash flows and liquidity in the event of longer periods of restriction via localised and
national lockdowns and greater reductions in revenues resulting from changes in customer behaviours. In
particular directors have considered {i} additianal reductions in expenditure at certain times to improve liquidity;
{ii} the potential of the group to access additional bank facilities where the directors note that the group's existing
£2m overdraft may be extended with the consent of the banks; or (iii} the additional support of kay stakeholders
and commissioners remodelling outcome based contractual arrangements to cost recovery models in the
medium term, if necessary. Liquidity assessments have also factored in the repayment of the £1m GMCA loan
due to be repaid in March 2021

The directors have concluded that the potential impact of the Covid-19 pandemic described above and their
ability and track record to react quickly to enact possible mitigating actions reflects the group and company’s
ability to cantinue as a going concern. For these reasons, whilst there are identified risks and a degree of
uncertainty in matters outside of the company's control, the directors continue to adopt a going concern basis
for the preparation of the financial statements. Accordingly, these financial statements do not include any
adjustments to the carrying amount or classification of assets and liabilities that would result if the group and
company wére unable to continue as a going concern.
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2020

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED]

Turnover
Turnover is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for services provided in the
normal course of business and is shown net of VAT and other sales related taxes.

Turnover from contracts for the provision of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion when
the stage of completion, costs incurred and costs to complete can be estimated reliably, based on three contract
types; .
» break-even contracts - income earned in relation to the spend in the period;
e monthly commissioner submissions —income earned based on monthly agreed submissions with third
parties;
s ' outcome based contracts — income is accounted for based an activity delivered which determines
eligibility to make a claim, ’
The stage of completion is caiculated by comparing costs incurred, mainiy in refation to contractual houriy staff
rates and materials, as a propartion of total costs. Where the outcome cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Donations are recoghised as income on a cash receipt basis, unless they relate to a specific project in which case
the income is recognised over the life of that project.

Grants of a revenue nature are credited to the statement of comprehensive income in the period to which they
relate.

The company charges management fees on its active loans. Fee income is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as it falls due.

Interest receivable

interest income is recognised as it falls due. interest charged by the Enterprise Fund Limited on loan advances
from its own funds is recognised as income within turnover which is used to partially off-set the operating costs
of the business. Other interest received is recognised after operating profit.

Intangible fixed assets - goodwill
Goodwill is capitalised and written off evenly over 10 years as, in the opinion of the directors, this represents the
petiod over which the goodwill is expected to give rise to economic benefits.

Intangible fixed assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are recognised at cast and are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets acquired on business
combinations are recognised separately from goodwill at the acquisition date where it is probable that the
expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the fair value of
the asset can be measured reliably.

Amortisation is recognised so as to write off the cost ar valuation of assets less their residual values over their
useful lives on the following bases:

Software 33% straight line

Intellectual property 33% straight line
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost, net of depreciation and

any impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values evenly over their useful
lives an the following bases:

Leasehold improvements 10 years, or life of related lease
Fixtures and fittings 5 years, or life of related lease
Computers 2 -5Svyears

Maotor vehicles 3-5vyears

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying value of the asset and is credited or charged to profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at fair value whilst a reliable
measure of fair value is available without undue cost or effort. Changes in fair value are recognised in profit or
lass. Whilst the property was independently valued in March 2020 at the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
valuation included within these financial statements is also supported by tenancies within the property
remaining at similar levels to those pre Covid — 19.

The Companies Act 2006 requires all properties to be depreciated. However, this requirement conflicts with the
generally accepted accounting principle set aut in FRS 102. The directors consider that, because investment
properties are not held for consumption, but for their investment potential, to depreciate them would not give
a true and fair view.

If this departure from the Companies Act 2006 had not been made in order to give a true and fair view, the profit
for the financial year would have been reduced by depreciation. However, the amount of depreciation cannot
reasonably be quantified, because depreciation is only ane of many factors reflected in the annual valuation and
the amount relating to the depreciation of the property cannot be separately identified.

Fixed asset investments
In the separate accounts of the company, interests in subsidiaries are initially measured at cost and subsequently

measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The investments are assessed for impairment at each
reporting date and any impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the group. Control is the power to gavern the financial and operating
policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Unlisted investments in ordinary shares are valued by the investment committee according to the international
Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines endorsed by the British Venture Capital Association. In
the case of unquoted investments, the value is established by using measurements of value such as the price of
recent investments, earnings multiple and net assets; where no reliable value can be measured using such
techniques, unquoted investments are carried at cost subject to impairment where necessary.
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2020

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

impairment of fixed assets

At each reporting period end date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that thase assets have suffered an impairment lass. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amaunt of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss [if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

The carrying amount of the investments accounted for using the equity method is tested for impairment as a
single asset. Any goodwili included in the carrying amount of the investment is not tested separately for
impairment.

Recaverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs 10 complete and sell. Cost
comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have heen
incurred in bringing the stocks to their present location and condition.

At each reparting date, an assessment is made far impairment. Any excess of the carrying amount of stocks
aver its estimated selling price iess costs to camplete and sell is recognised as an impairment loss in profit or
loss. Reversals of impairment losses are also recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are basic financial instruments and include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term liquid investments with originaf maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Financial instruments
The group has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 'Basic Financial Instruments' of FRS 102 to all of its
financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised when the group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and liahilities are offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include trade and other debtors, prepayments and acerued income and cash and
bank balances, are initially measured at transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently
carried at amortised cast using the effective interest method.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets, including trade investments, are initially measured at fair value, which is normally the
transaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in fair value are recognised
in profit or loss, except for investments in equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair values
cannot be measured reliably are measured at cost less impairment.
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at each reporting end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been affected.
If an asset is impaired, the impairment lass is the difference between the carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

If there is a decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the impairment is reversed, The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not exceed what the
carrying amount would have been, had the impairment not previously been recognised. The impairment reversal
is recognised in profit or loss.

For loan debtors, fee and interest income are recognised up to the peint at which evidence of impairment has
taken place, being the default of the loan debtor. At this trigger point no further interest is accrued and a
provision between 0% - 100% is made for the outstanding balance of both interest and fee income depending
on the ageing of the arrears. The extent to which repayment occurs after default, and the appropriate
provisioning policy, is assessed on an annual basis.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows froam the asset expire or are
settied, or when the group transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of awnership
to another entity, or if some significant risks and rewards of ownership are retained but control of the asset has
transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party.

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Basic financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other creditors, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies are
initialiy recognised at transaction price unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the
debtinstrument is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Derecognition of financial ligbilities
Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the group's centractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled, or they expire.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the group are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received, net of transaction
costs. Dividends payable on equity instruments are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at the
discretion of the group.
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax expense and deferred tax expense. Current tax assets are
recognised when tax paid exceeds the tax payable.

Current and deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or
credited to other comprehensive income or equity, when the tax follows the transaction or event it relates to and
is also charged or credited ta other comprehensive income, or equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if and
only if, there is a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and the entity intends either to settle on the net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised, or
the liability is settied based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in respect of all timing differences that exist at the reporting date. Timing
differences are differences between taxable profits and total comprehensive income that arise from the inclusion
of income and expenses in tax assessments in different periods from their recognition in the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered by the reversal
of deferred tax liabilities or cther future taxable profits.

Deferrad tax is recognised on income and expenses from subsidiaries that wilt be assessed ta or altow for tax in
a futurc period except whare the group is able to control the reversal of the timing difference and it is probable
that the timing difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

For non-depreciable assets measured using the revaluation model and investment properties measured at fair
value {except investment property with a limited useful life held by the group to consume substantially all of its
economic benefit}, deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and allowances that apply to the sale of the asset
or property.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a legal or constructive present obligation as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting end date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Whaere the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the
obligation is recognised at present value. When a provision is measured at present value, the unwinding of the
discount is recognised as a finance cost in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Employee benefits
The costs of short-term emplayee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs are
required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.

The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee's services are
received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably committed
to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

35



THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED])

Retirement henefits

For defined cantribution schemes the amoaunt charged to profit or loss is the contributions payable in the year.
Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals
or prepayments.

The cost of providing benefits under defined benefit plans is determined separately for each plan using the
projected unit credit methed and is based on actuarial advice.

The change in the net defined benefit liability arising from employee service during the year is recognised as an
emplayee cost. The cost of plan introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments are recognised asan
expense in measuring profit ar loss in the period in which they arise.

The net interest element is determined by multiplying the net defined benefit liability by the discount rate, taking
into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit
payments. The net interest is recognised in profit or loss as other finance revenue ar cost.

Remeasurement changes comprise actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling and the returin on the
net defined benefit liability excluding amounts included in net interest. These are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent

periods.

The net defined benefit pension asset or liability in the balance sheet comprises the total for each plan of the
present value of the defined benefit obligation (using a discount rate based on high quality corporate bonds), less
the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. Fair value is based on market
price information, and in the case of quoted securities is the published bid price. The value of a net pension benefit
asset is limited to the amount that may be recovered either through reduced contributions or agreed refunds from

the scheme.

Leases

Rentals payable under operating leases, including any lease incentives received, are charged to profit or loss on a
straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease except where another more systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign exchange
Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency (foreign currency) are initially recorded at the

exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at
the reporting date, Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the

rate ruling at the date of the transaction, or, if the asset or liability is measured at fair value, the rate when that
fair value was determined.

All translation differences are taken to profit or loss.
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2020

2. JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF £STIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the group's accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
saurces. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angaing basis. Revisians tg accounting estimates
are recognised in the periad in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects bath current and future periods.

Valuation of investment properties

The group carries its investment property at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in profit and
loss. During the year, the group engaged Edwards & Co Surveyors Limited to perform a valuation on the property
and the fair value was increased by £300%. The key assumptions underpinning the assessments of fair value inciude
rental yields, the resale value and the cost of equity capital. While the valuation was carried out at the onset of
the Covid-19 pandemic, it is supported by tenancies within the property being maintained at a similar level and
hence the directars are satisfied that their valuation accurately reflects open market value at 31 March 2020.

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

The cast of defined benefit pension plans is determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves
making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases.
Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and the long-term nature of these plans, such
estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management
consider the interest rate of corporate bands with at least an AA rating. The mortality rate is based on publicly
available information. Future salary increases are based on the expected future increases for the group. The
directors have increased the pension Hability for the October 2018 ruling en GMP (Guaranteed Minimum
Pensions).

Dilapidations provision

The group has recognised provisions for dilapidations in the financia) statements which requires management
judgement, The judgements, estimales and associated assumptions necessary to calculate these provisions are
based on historical experience and other reasonable factors. The amounts recognised in the year is £1,116k {2019:
£258k), acknowledging all potential dilapidations against the portfolio of leases. Previously these had not been
recognised on Balance Sheet. The dilapidations costs that might arise at the end of the lease terms may differ from
the estimate recognised in the meantime.
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THE GROWTH COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2020

2. JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION AND UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
Provision far impairment loss on loan debtors

On a monthly basis, the directors make estimates in determining the level of loan arrears that indicate an
impairment of a loan debtor. When debtor arrears reach the determined impairment trigger point, the directors
estimate the likelihood of recovery after considering a number of factors, including the creditworthiness of the
borrower, previous repayment patterns and any payment arrangements, These estimates may differ from
eventual arrears outturn after the assessment date.

Provision js made on an individual case by case basis, after taking into consideration relevant circumstances of the
borrower. Interest ceases to be accrued if the directers consider the likelihood of payment is negligible.

At the year end date, 30 loans with a net book value of £1.29m had been granted a repayment holiday and as such,
did not have a repayment profile on which the directors could make an assessment of arrears pattern. At the date
of appraval of the financial statements, only 12 of these lgans remained in a repayment holiday position,
representing a year end total net book value of £0.49m. The directors have assessed the arrears profile of the
whole loan book at the year end date and subsequent to the year end and have projected expectations of recovery
profiles seen, onta those loans still in repayment holiday. No additional provision has been made as result of this
assessment. The actual recovery outturns once these loans recommence repayment may differ from this
assessment.

Agent versus Principal

In recognising certain loan book arrangements within debtors and creditors and associated interest income within
the financial statements, the directors must consider whether, in their judgement the group is exposed to the
significant risks and rewards associated with the loan book arrangements and whether the group has control of
the associated assets, liabilities and income streams. If the directors conclude that the group is exposed to
substantially all of the risks and rewards of these transactions and controls the associated assets, liabilities and
income streams, then these loan books will be reported as principal. Alternatively, if the directors conclude the
group is not exposed to substantially all of the risks and rewards of these transactions and it does not control the
assaciated assets, liabilities and income streams, then these loan books will be reported as agent. The loan book
administered by the group totals £241.9m {2019: £193.9m), including amounts where the group acts as agent and
not principal.

Investment valuation

Directors use estimates in determining the fair value of investments. The directors vafue the investments according
to the international Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines endorsed by the British Venture
Capital Association. In the case of unquoted investments, the value is established by using measurements of value
such as the price of recent investments, earnings multiple and net assets. The valuations are estimates only until
such time that the investment is realised through sale. The eventual realisation proceeds will inevitably differ from
the valuations shown in these accounts and the differences could be significant.

Recognition of income and costs

Management regularly review activity and make appropriate adjustments to accrue or defer income and
expenditure based on the activities performed by the company during the period. The value of accrued income is
£13,883k (2019: £8,352k) and the value of deferred income is £13,676k (2019: £6,444k). The impact of Covid-19
has resuited in increased uncertainty surrounding revenue recagnition though this has been mitigated through the
recoghition of revenue only when earned in relation to spend in perlod or when activity is delivered and
performance obligations achieved.
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3.  TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME

In the view of the directors, the classes of business provided by the group do not differ substantially from each
other for the purposes of segmental reporting. The ultimate business areas all relate ta the detivery of publicly
funded and commercial skills, training employment, lending activities and recruitment services to businesses and
individual customers across Greater Manchester and the UK on a not-for-profit basis.

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Turnover analysed by class of business
Provision of services 896,495 77,106
2020 2019
£7000 £'000
Other operating income
Rental income 465 504
Donations 224 -
Insurance refund - 100
689 604
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Furnover analysed by geographical market
United Kingdom 96,449 76,941
Rest of Europe 26 149
Rest of World o] 10
96,495 77,100
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4. EMPLOYEES

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed during the year was:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Number Number Number Number
Qperational, delivery and administrative
employees 1,406 1,302 154 132

During the year average full time equivalent employee numbers were 1,381 (2019: 1,040).

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 38,062 33,474 5,210 4,220
Social security costs 3,243 2,769 477 378
Pension costs 2,299 2,320 350 307
43,604 38,563 6,037 4,905

5. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Remuneration for qualifying services 178 155
Campany pension contributions to defined contribution schemes a6 36
224 191

Remuneration disclosed above includes payments to the highest paid director, which were recharged into the
company from Manchester Investment and Development Agency Service Limited, a related party. The highest
paid director’'s remuneration was as follows:

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

Remuneration for qualifying services 176 155
Company pension cantributions to defined contribution schemes 46 36
222 191

Twao directars (2019: 1) have retirement benefits accruing under defined contribution schemes.
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6. OPERATING SURPLUS

Operating surplus is stated after charging:

Exchange losses

Research and development costs

Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Auditor’'s remuneration

- for audit services (parent)

- for audit services (subsidiaries)

- for non-audit services (tax advisory and
compliance)

Bad and doubtful debts

Operating lease rentals

- tand and buildings

7. INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND OTHER INCOME

Interest on hank deposits
Other interest income

8. INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability

9. FAIR VALUE GAINS AND LOSSES ON INVESTMENTS

Fair value gains and losses on investments

41

2020 2019
£'000 €000
24 5
28 40
1,831 1,392
19 18
27 22
144 162
41 79
151 23
1,857 2,710
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
14 14
- 13
14 27
2020 2019
£000 £'000
118 205
105 a8
2 3
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
- (150)
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10. TAXATION

Current taxation
UK corporation tax on surplus for the current period
Adjustment in respect of prior periods

Total current tax

Deferred taxation
Origination and reversal of timing differences

2020 2019
£'000 £°000
42 154
69 {89)
111 65
28 -
139 65

The total tax charge for the year included in the income statement can be reconciled to the profit before tax

multiplied by the standard rate of tax as follows:

Surplus on ardinary activities before tax
Theoretical tax at 19% (2019: 19%})
Effects of:

Expenditure not tax deductible

Adjustment for prior periods
Exempt activities
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2020 2019
£000 £'000
346 226
66 43
148 196
(36) (89)
(39) (85)
139 65
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11. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Intellectual
Negative property
Group Goodwill Goodwill Software rights Total
£'000G £°000 £'006G £'000 £'600
Cost
At 1 April 2019 1,134 (794} 567 60 967
Additions - - 436 - 436
Disposals - - - (60} (60}
At 31 March 2020 1,134 {794) 1,003 - 1,343
Amortisation
At 1 April 2019 981 (794) - 60 247
Charge for year 19 - - - 19
Disposals - - - (60) (50)
At 31 March 2020 1,000 (794) - - 206
Net carrying amount
At 31 March 2020 134 - 1,003 - 1,137
At 31 March 2019 153 N 567 ~ 720

The company had no intangible fixed assets at 31 March 2020 or 31 March 2019. The amounts ahove for software
are assets which have not yet been brought into use.

12. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS — GROUP

Leasehold Fixtures and Motor
improvements fittings Computers vehicles Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 April 2019 1,217 6,287 4,980 58 12,542
Additions 862 135 831 - 1,828
Reclassification 477 939 898 2 2,316
Disposals {775) {4,116) (3,439) (35) {8,365)
At 31 March 2020 1,781 3,245 3,270 25 8,321
Depreciation
At 1 April 2019 360 4,833 3,081 57 8,931
Charge for year 492 353 985 1 1,831
Reclassification 324 752 1,238 2 2,318
Disposals (774) {3,905} (3,373) (35) {8,087)
At 31 March 2020 1,002 2,033 1,931 ’ 25 4,991
Net carrying amount
At 31 March 2020 779 1,212 1,339 - 3,330
At 31 March 2019 257 1,454 1,899 1 3,611
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13.  TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS — COMPANY

Leasehold Fixtures and Motor
improvements fittings Computers vehicles Total
£°000 £°000 £7000 £000 £'600

Cost
At 1 April 2019 1,097 5,030 3,897 35 10,059
Additions 736 61 771 - 1,568
Reclassification 238 {238) - - -
Disposals {484) {2,812) (1,527) (35) (4,858)
At 31 March 2020 1,587 2,041 3,141 - 6,769
Depreciation
At 1 April 2019 837 3,598 2,394 35 6,864
Charge for year 395 232 947 - 1,674
Reclassification 108 {108) - -
Disposals (483) (2,601} {1,461} (35) {4,580)
At 31 March 2020 ac7 1,121 1,880 - 3,858
Net carrying amount
At 31 March 2020 730 920 1,261 - 2,911
At 31 March 2019 260 1,432 1,503 - 3,195

The reclassification for the group and the company relates to the revision of the analyses between asset types
and carrection of the net carrying amounts, at 2019 between cost and depreciation provision.

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Group Company
2020 2020
£'000 £000

Fair value
At 1 April 2019 ' 4,700 4,700
Net gains or losses through fair value adjustments 300 300
At 31 March 2020 5,000 5,000

On 6 March 2020, the investment property was revalued by Edwards & Co Surveyors Limited, chartered
surveyors, an an open market value for existing use basis, Edwards & Co Surveyors Limited is an independent
valuer with recognised and relevant professional qualifications and experience in accordance with the Appraisal
and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

Whilst the valuation was carried out at the onset of the Covid-19 pandemic, it is supported by tenancies within

the property being maintained at a similar level and hence the directors are satisfied that their valuation
accurately reflects open market value at 31 March 2020.
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15.  FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Notes

Investments in subsidiaries 16
Unlisted investments

Group

Valuation

At 1 April 2019
Additions

At 31 March 2020
Impairment

At 1 April 2019
Charge for year

At 31 March 2020

Net carrying amount
At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2019

Group
2020
£'000

1,222

Company
2019 2020 2019
£°000 £7000 £000

- 568 568
498 - -

1,222

498 568 568

Unlisted
investments
£'000

648

724

1,372

150

150

1,222

498

During the year, £724k was invested by The Enterprise Fund Limited into shares of unlisted companies.

Company

Cost or valuation

At 31 March 2020

Net carrying amount
At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2019
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Shares in

group
undertakings
£'000

568

568

568
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186, SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2020 are as follows:

Name of undertaking Nature of business Class of % Held
shares held Direct Indirect

Aspire Recruitment Recruitment Ordinary - 100
Partnership Limited *
BFS Funding Managers Business funding manages the Narth West Ordinary - 100
Limited * micro fund
BFS NPIF General Administers the North West micro fund Ordinary - 100
Partner Limited 3
BFS NWF General Administers the North West micro fund Ordinary - 100
Partner Limited * ‘
Centre for Assessment Business support services Ordinary - 100
Limited *
Challenge 4 Change Education, training and leisure activities for | Ordinary 100 -
Limited disadvantaged young pecple

Registered charity
Challenge 4 Change Education, training and leisure activities for | Ordinary - 100
Trading Limited ! disadvantaged young people
Chamberlink Limited * Business support services Ordinary - 100
Employment & Assisting the economically disadvantaged Ordinary 100 -
Regeneration
Partnership Limited
GM Business Support Delivery of contracts to support growth of Ordinary 100 -
Limited businesses and help for individuals to start

a business
Improvement Business support services Ordinary - 100
Development Growth
timited *
1QC2 Limited ® Business support services Ordinary - 100
Marketing Manchester | Marketing of Greater Manchester region Ordinary 100 -
National Schools Provider of training to schools Ordinary - 100
Training Limited 7
Recovery Works Education, training and leisure activities for | Ordinary 100 -
Limited disadvantaged young people
Skilis and Work Skills services Ordinary 100 -
Sclutions Limited
The Enterprise Fund Community development finance Ordinary 100 -
Limited institution Funding for business
The Manufacturing Supporting manufacturing companies Ordinary 100 -
Institute Registered charity
The North West Employment and training Ordinary 100 -
Apprenticeship
Company Limited
TMI Enterprises Limited | Holding company Ordinary - 100
g
TMI Practitioner Supporting manufacturing companies Ordinary - 100
Services Limited ®
TPMI (Trading) Limited ¢ | Supporting manufacturing companies Ordinary - 100
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16. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The registered office of all of the above companies is Lee House, 90 Great Bridgewater Street, Manchester, M1

SIW.

1

2
3

Challenge 4 Change Trading Limited is wholly owned by Challenge 4 Change Limited

BFS Funding Managers Limited is wholly owned by The Enterprise Fund Limited

BFS NWF General Partner Limited and BFS NPIF General Partner Limited are whally owned by BFS
Funding Managers Limited. The companies are general partners in NWF {Microloans} LP and NFIF NwW
{Microfinance} LP

Aspire Recruitment Partnership Limited, Improvement Development Growth Llimited, Centre for
Assessment Limited and Chamberlink Limited are wholly owned by Skills and Work Solutions Limited
1QC2 Limited is wholly owned by Centre for Assessment Limited

TPMI (Trading) Limited, TMI Practitioner Services Limited and TMI Enterprises Limited are wholly owned,
directly or indirectly by The Manufacturing Institute

National Schools Training Limited is wholly owned directly by Skills and Work Solutions Limited

Details of the campany’s dormant subsidiaries can be found in note 32.

17. STOCK
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £'000 £°000 £°000
Finished goods and goods for resale - 10 - -
18. DEBTORS
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Due within one year
Trade debtors 9,418 5,453 4,084 377
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 2,369 4,522
Other debtors 331 1,184 117 838
Prepayments and accrued income 23,922 15,169 2,103 2,746
33,671 21,806 8,673 ' 8,483
Due after one year
Trade debtors : 2,154 2,650 - -
35,825 24,456 8,673 8,483

There is a provision for bad debts of £452k {2019 - £529k restated), which is in relation to loan book balances.
in the previous year, this figure has included a provisicn which was part of a balance acquired at £Nil cost. The
directors have considered these debts to he doubtful and have provided accordingly far what they consider
the group's expasure to be. There are specific provisions far bad and doubtful debts relating to trade debtors
of £374k {2019 - £358k).
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19, CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND

The cash balance includes £3,578k {2019: £4,528k) in respect of grants from funding bodies which are ring-
fenced for onward lending. The balances are separately identified and held in their own bank accounts.

The cash balance also includes £nil (2019: £2k) in respect of grants from funding bodies which is ring- fenced
for onward expenditure on grant applications. The balances are separately identified and held in their own
bank accounts.

20, CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Bank loans (note 22) 141 227 141 225
Other borrowings (note 22} 1,000 500 - -
Trade creditors 5,532 597 674 -
Amounts due to group undertakings - - 13,008 13,307
Corporation tax 123 122 73 56
Other taxation and social security 1,819 1,654 966 120
QOther creditors 589 909 197 129
Accruals and deferred income 27,079 17,507 3,832 4,474
36,283 21,556 18,891 18,311

Bank loans and other loans are secured by means of fixed and floating charges over the current and future
assets of the company. Further details are provided in note 22.

21, CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER ONE YEAR
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 £000 £°000
Bank loans {note 22) 1,355 1,259 1,355 1,259
Other borrowings {note 22} - 500 - -
Other creditors 80 80 - -
1,435 1,839 1,355 1,259

Amounts included above which are payable by instalments are as fofllows:

1 -2 years 146 314 146 314
2 — 5 years 468 945 468 945
More than 5 years 741 - 741 -

1,355 1,259 1,355 1,259
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22, BORROWINGS

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019 )
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans 1,496 1,484 1,496 1,484
Bank overdrafts - 2 - -
Other loans 1,000 1,000 - -
B 2,496_ 2,436 ) 1,45& - 71,4874
Payable within one year 1,141 727 141 225
Payable after one year 1,355 1,759 1,355 1,259

Included within total bank loans was £nil {2019: £1,485k} relating to a mortgage facility with The Co- operative
Bank. The Co-aperative Bank held a first legal charge security over registered freehold land and huildings and
unlimited cross guarantee with fellow subsidiary undertakings. This loan was due for repayment in 2023 and
had interest of 5.625%.

On 7 June 2019, this loan was refinanced with National Westminster Bank pic at an interest rate of 3.23% per
annum and is due for repayment in 2029. The first legal charge over the registered freehold land and buildings,
known as Warren Bruce Court, Trafford Park, has transferred to National Westminster Bank plc as security.

Included in ather borrowings is a balance of £1 m (2019: £1 m) which relates to a loan from Greater Manchester

Combined Authority. The loan carries interest of 6% and is repayable in full on 31 March 2021. The loan is
guaranteed by The Growth Company Limited.
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23.

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Dilapidations liabilities 1,116 258 950 218
Deferred tax liahilities 39 39 28 28
1,155 297 978 246
All leases will elapse within the next 10 years and remaining terms range between 1 and 10 years.
Movements on provisions apart from deferred tax liabilities:
Dilapidations Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 April 258 - 218 B
Charge to income and expenditure account 858 258 732 218
At 31 March 1,116 258 950 218
The major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group and company are:
Deferred taxation Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Accelerated capital allowances 11 11 - -
Investment property 28 28 28 28
39 39 28 28

There were no deferred tax movements recognised in the year.

The deferred tax liability, in relation to accelerated capital allowances, set out above is expected to reverse

within 12 months.

There is an unprovided deferred tax asset of £1,493k (2013: £1,363k) which relates to unutilised tax losses
carried forward. This asset has not been recognised as its recoverability against future profits is currently

uncertain.

There is alsa unprovided deferred tax asset of £86k (2019: £65k) in relation to defined benefit pension scheme.
Deferred tax is not recognised as it is not probable that it will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax

liabilities ar other future taxable profits.
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24,

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

2020 2019
£'000 £000

Defined contribution schemes :
Charge to profit or lass in respect of defined cantribution schemes 2,083 2,097

The group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for all qualifying employees in the United Kingdom.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the group in an independently administered fund.
Contributions totalling £374k {2019: £441k) were payable to the fund at the year end and are included in other
creditors.

Defined benefit schemes

some employees of Employment & Regeneration Partnership Limited and Marketing Manchester participate in
the Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF), part of the Local Government Pension Scheme. The scheme
provides benefits based on final pensionable pay. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
company, being invested with an independent investment manager.

Pension contributions are determined by a gualified actuary on the basis of triennial valuations using the
projected unit method. A full actuariai valuation of the GMPF was carried out at 31 March 2016 by a qualified
independent actuary. The next triennial vaiuations, which were anticipated to be updated by 31 March 2020, in
relation to Marketing Manchester will be carried out to 31 March 2022 and in relation to Employment &
Regeneration Partnership Limited, to 31 March 2023.

some employees of Skills and Wark Selutions Limited participate in the Greater Manchester Chamber of
Commerce Pension Scheme (GMCS). The scheme pravides benefits based on final pensionable salary and is now
closed. A full actuarial valuation af the GMCS was carried out by a qualified independent actuary as at 31 March
2019. The next triennial valuation will be carried out to 31 March 2022.

The current service casts ara charged to operating expenditure and the net returns on assets are charged to net
interest receivable in the profit and loss account. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the
statement of comprehensive income. Pension scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using a
projected unit method and are discounted to their present value using an AA corporate bond rate. Pension
scheme assets are valued at market value at the balance sheet date. The pension scheme deficit is recognised in
full on the balance sheet. The pension scheme for Employment Regeneration Partnership Limited is not
recognised because it is in an asset pasition. The liability for the year ended 31 March 2020 reflects the expected
increase in benefits and therefore liability as a result of the Guaranteed Minimum Pension (‘GMP'} equalisation
between men and women which is required as a result of the removal of the Additional State Pension.

Assumptions as at 31 March 2020 2019
% p.a. % p.a.
Discount rate 2.2 2.5
Expected rate of increase of pension in payment 1.9 2.5
Experted return of salary increases 1.0 24
Mortality assumptions 2020 2019
Assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65: Years Years
Retiring today
- Males 85.5 86.5
- Females 83.1 89.1
Retiring in 23 years
- Males 87.0 88.7
- Females . 90.0 91.2
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24.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

Amount recognised in the income statement:

Current service cost
Net interest on defined benefit liability
Not recognised due to pension asset

Total costs

Amount taken to other comprehensive income:

Actual loss/ (return) on scheme assets
Less calculated interest element

Loss/ {return} an scheme assets exciuding interest income
Movement in unrecognised plan surplus
Actuarial changes related to obligations

Total costs

2020 2019
£000 £'000
216 284
105 98
(10) -
311 382
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
1,231 (976)
390 374
1,621 {602)
(106) {s7)
(93) 803
1,422 144

The amounts included in the statement of financial position arising from the company's abligations in respect of

defined benefit plans are as follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Present value of defined benefit obligations 15,718 19,306 - -
fair value of plan assets {14,046) {15,205) - -
Deficit in scheme 5,672 4,101 - -
Restriction on scheme assets 818 917 - -
Total liability recognised 6,490 5,018 - -
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations: 2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Opening defined benefit obligation 13,306 17,805
Current service cost 216 284
Plan introductions, changes, curtailments and settlements - 81
Benefits paid (245) {179}
Contributions from scheme members 39 40
Actuarial gains and losses {93) 803
Interest cost 495 472
Closing defined benefit obligation 19,718 19,306

The defined benefit abligations from plans funded are all from wholly funded abligations.
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24.

25.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (CONTINUED}

Movement in the fair value of plan assets: 2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Fair value of plan assets at 1 April 15,205 14,098
Interest income 390 374
{Loss)/return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest) {1,621} 602
Benefits paid {245) {179)
Contributions by the employer 278 270
Cantributions by scheme members 39 490
Fair value of plan assets at 31 March 14,046 15,205
The analysis of the scheme assets at the reporting date were as follows: 2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Equity instruments 9,124 10,421
Property 825 1,065
Bonds 3,153 2,693
Cash 944 1,026

14,046 15,205

RESERVES

Profit and loss reserves

The income and expenditure account includes all current and prior period retained profits and losses. The closing
balance on the income and expenditure account includes a debit of £6,490k (2019: £5,018k debit) in respect of
pension scheme deficit of the group pension schemes.

The company's Articles of Association specify that any profit of income over expenditure must be applied to the
promotion of the objects of the cantpany and cannot tie distributed directly or indirectly by way of dividends,
banus or other distribution to the members of the campany. In the event of dissolution of the cormpany, any
accumulated profit shafi be given or transferred to another company or body having ohjects similar to those of
the company.

The directors also have various responsibilities placed on them by Company Law in relation to the operation of
The Growth Company Limited. In order for the company to continue its activities, the directors need reasonable
assurance that the organisation will be able to meet its debts as they fall due and discharge all of its actual and
reasonably foreseeable contingent liabilities. As a company limited by guarantee, The Growth Company Limited
has na share capital and, accordingly, the directors are unable to fulfil their statutory obligations without the
group maintaining a prudent level of reservas.

The group reserves policy considers the minimum reserve level necessary {excluding any pension liability) in each
operating campany to facilitate a solvent wind-up should there ever bie a need to close an operating company.
This is not envisaged. A theoretical exercise has been undertaken ta identify minimum reserve targets on the
premise that the group and its companies are not-for-profit and wouid want to see all creditors, responsibilities
and obligations discharged properly in the event of a wind-up of one or more of the companies. The minimum
reserve targets are reviewed annually as part of the business planning process.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve includes all valuation changes relating to the investment property, net of associated
deferred tax. This balance is not distributable.
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26.

27.

CASH GENERATED FROM GROUP OPERATIONS

Surplus for the year after tax

Adjustments for:
Taxation charged
Finance costs
Investment income

Fair value gains and losses an investment properties

Amaortisation and impairment of intangible assets

Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets

Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Other gains and losses

Pension scheme non-cash movement
Increase in provisions

Movements in warking capital:
Decrease in stocks

{Increase)/ decrease in debtors
Increase/ {decrease) in creditors

Cash generated from/ {absorbed by) operations

ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT — GROUP

Cash at bank and in hand
Bank overdrafts

Debt due in less than one year
Debt due in greater than one year

Total
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2020 2019

£'000 £'000

207 16l

139 65

223 303

(14) (27)

(300) -

19 18

1,831 1,352

278 -

- 150

(55) 1,069

858 258

10 14

{11,369) 2,141

14,314 {6,402}

6,141 (858)
At 1 April At 31 March
2019 Cash flow 2020
£000 £'000 £'000
9,899 2,919 12,818
(2) 2 -
(727) (414) (1,141)
{1,759) 404 {1,355)
7,411 2,911 10,322
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28,

29.

FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On the 7 June 2019 the loan with The Co-operative Bank was refinanced with National Westminster Bank pic
with the compaosite guarantee transferring to them.

At 31 March 2020, the group's bankers, National Westminster Bank Pic, hold an unlimited intercompany
guarantee dated 2 December 2014 between The Growth Company Limited and the following companies:
Chamberlink Limited, Skills and Work Solutions Limited, GM Business Support Limited, Improvement
Development Growth Limited, Centre For Assessment Limited, The North West Apprenticeship Company Limited,
IQC2 Limited, Aspire Recruitment Partnership Limited, Marketing Manchester Limited, Employment and
Regeneration Partnership Limited.

The group's bankers, Nationa! Westminster Plc, hold a composite guarantee dated 11 April 2019 between The
Growth Company Limited and the following companies: Chamberlink Limited, GM Business Support Limited,
Improvement Development Growth Limited, Centre For Assessment Limited, The North West Apprenticeship
Company Limited, iQC2 Limited.

The total potential liahility of the company in relation to this composite guarantee at 31 March 2020 is £1,496k
{2019: £1,485k}).

The total liability for the group VAT as at 31 March 2020 is £885k {2013: £1 ,040k].

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Lessee
At the reporting end date the group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellahle operating leases, which fall due as follows:

Group Lompany

2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Land and buildings, leases expiring:
Within one year 1,201 1,540 1,092 1,067
Between one and five years 2,343 3,054 2,274 2,701
After more than five years 933 1,186 933 1,196

4,477 5,790 4,299 4,964
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30.

31.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel of the group, which includes directors, is as follows.

2020 2019
£000 £'000
Aggregate compensation 3,076 2,825

During the year, group companies entered into transactions with related parties who are not wholly owned
members of the group.

These are related parties of the group by virtue of partnership arrangements. Ail transactions were made atarm's
length. During the year, the total amount recharged by the group was £137k {2019: £138k) and the total amount
owed by related parties at year end is £13k (2019: £101k). During the year, the total amount charged to the
group was £nil (2019: £nil) and the total amount owed to related parties was £9k (2019: £nil}.

During the year, the following related parties of the group by virtue of comman director. All transactions were
made at arm’s length. The total amount recharged by the group was £559k (2019: £555k) and the total amount
owed by related parties at year end is £118k {2019: £120k]). During the year, the total amount charged to the
group was £736k {2019: £776k) and the total amount owed to related parties at year end is £223k (2019: £76k).

POST REPORTING DATE EVENTS

In response to Covid-19, the directors have taken action to mitigate the consequential and significant impact on
the company’s operation. All of these actions, including a staff restructuring programime and breaking a major
lease, were taken post-year end and are, therefore, not reflected in the financial statements of 21 March 2020.
In addition to this, an extension was granted regarding loan facilities of the £1m loan from the GMCA from 31
March 2020 to 31 March 2021, which is reflected within these financial statements.
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32. OTHER SUBSIDIARIES

As well as the trading subsidiaries, at 31 March 2020 The Growth Company Limited also held the following
dormant subsidiaries of which it contrals 100% of the shares or vating rights, either directly or indirectly.

Educations Business Solutions Limited
Manchester Business Link Limited

Training & Manpower Limited

Yorkshire and Humberside Assessment Limited
Yorkshire and Humberside Holdings Limited
BSAFM Carry LLP Manchester Solutions Limited
ENWORKS Limited

The Greater Manchester Apprenticeship Company Limited
The Business Growth Hub Limited Skills Solution Limited
The Manchester Growth Company Limited

The Greater Manchester Growth Company Limited
The Northern Growth Company Limited ’
The UK Growth Company Limited

The North West Growth Company Limited

The GM Growth Company Limited

The Cheshire Growth Company Limited

The Merseyside Growth Company Limited
Manchester Growth Limited

Midlands Growth Company

Economic Solutions Limited

Business Regulation Soiutions Limited

New Economy Limited

Fxport Growth Partners Limited

Export Growth Partnership Limited

The Lancashire Growth Company Limited

The registered office of all the above campanies is Lee House, 90 Great Bridgewater Street, Manchester, M1
SIW,
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